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POTTERS BAR AND DISTRICT HISTORICAL SOCIETY

PRESIDENT: Mrs. MURIEL BRITTAIN CHAIRMAN: K. RUTHERFORD DAVIS, B.A
HON. SECRETARY: A. Harding, M.A., 83 Byng Drive, Potters Bar.  Tel. 52973

Formed in 4959 to encourage the preservation of things
of local interest and t- study bpth local ahd general historical matters.
Meetings are held throughout the winter months at intervals of ‘approximately
three to four weeks, details are exhibited on Public Library notice boards
or may be obtained from the secretary. Subscriptions are 50p. per annum for
those over twenty-one years of age and 25p. for those over twenty-one. -

In 1973 an archaeological group was formed under the ®
leadership of Mr.G. Pulzer. = ;

A11 members of the public are welcome to attend our
meetings whether members of the society or not.

EDITORIAL

! We are pleased to record that attendances at the meetings
so far this session show some considerable improvement on the last two
seasonse. Vie hope that this trend will continue and that with our incresing
membership that we will see even larger numbers at the meetings. It is most
impolite to a speaker (who may have travelled many miles at his own expense)
to greet him with an audience of a doZen or so. :

There are many reascns for & poor attendance at any given
function, bad weather is one of them, but when numbers are low at several
meetings the Programme Secretary begins to wonder what he has done wrong.

Is he getting the right speakers?, or perhaps the subjects are wrong?, or

the nights? However he does his best "and if members would prefer somzthing
different they they should make their wishes know to the committee. ‘Meetings
are held on varying evenings of the week so that people with fixed commitments
may be able to attend at least some of the meetings. If youw have any
suggestions which may lead to improved attendances pleas make tham known at
the Annual General leeting. '
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ERRATA

PBHS 7 - page 4 - para. 4- line L, - for Richard Teakettle substitute Richard
e ' Ashkettle. %

All opinions expressed in this journal are those of the contributors and are
not necessarily the views of the Potters Bar and District Historical Society
either as a body or as individual members.

Hon, Editor: C. T. Overend, 30 Deepdene, Potters Bar, Hertfordshire.

Published by the Potters Bar and District Historical Society.



CHACE HOUSE

= Chace House stands in its own grounds at the south-west end of
Coopers Lane (‘the road to Northaw) at-its junction with the Causeway and
Coopers Lane Raod (map reference TL 269017).

The name Chace House was aptly chesen for the house stands just
within the ancient boundary of Enfield Chace. The boundary of the Chace
here fellows for a short distance the former county boundary between
Hertfordshire and Middlesex which runs north-west to south-east a” little
north of Chace House. The Causeway and Coopers Lane are both within Enfield
Chace, the western boundary of which was the present high-road between
Potters Bar and Hadley Green,except by Wrotham Park, a stretch of which was
eithin the Chace. : : e

The site of Chace House can be traced back to 1767, when it and
its surroundings appear on maps relating to the Chace as an encroachment within
the gate across Coopers Lane at the county boundary. The Chace House site was
at that date just a close or enclosure of 1 rood 39 perches (i.e. just under
half an acre) belonging to a Me. Walthow, and was for identification purposes
known as enclosure Nos 42. He also held No. 41, which was a house and garden
of 15 perches on the opppsite side of a path from the gate whic turned west to
become the Causeway. North of No.42 was.a narrow path and then came No. 43 ,
having on its far side the county boundary. This last enclosure was owned by
Robert Vass and comprised a house, a blacksmith's shop and a close. Together
Nos. 42 and 43 projected in such a way as to form a point round which ran the
way now called Coopers Lane but earlier named Chequers Lane, Hook Lane.

On the 1925 25" Ordnance Survey map enclosure No. 43 had become.a
row of cottages with their central entry to their common close exacily opposite
the present Chequers Public House, which has stood since the 1840's on what in
1767 was an open triangular piece of land between No. 40O (a cottage, barn and
garden next to the county.boundry on the north side of Coopers Lane) and
No. 41 (Mr. walthow's house and girden opposite his and our No. 42). 4s for
No, 42 itself, the 1935 map shows Chace House with its detached brick building,
its stable block and its gardens. :

Chace House is brick built and wes, judging from-its architecture,
built soon after-the 1777 division »f the Chace into separate ownerships.
An 1843 deed shows that the building was either a publis house from the begining
or soon became one, for it is described as "formerly called and known by the
name and sign of the New Inn or Chequers Inn but now used as a messuage and
grocer's shop" held by John Jaques. The public House era accounts for the
detached brick building, evidently the brewery, a name still sumetimes used for
it. In 1843 the owner of Shace Heuse was Harriet Tomlinson, widow of
William Tomlinson, grocer. To the north, where Robert Vass the blacksmith
once lived, had later lived Benjamin Williams another blacksmith. In 1843
Charles le Blanc owned the property and, with others, the land t® the east of
Chace House. On this house's other boundaries were Coopers Lane and
Coopers Lane Road to Enfield. After 1843 Chace House became a private
regiflence under various owners and in c¢1900 there was & fire on:the northern
side. In the 1920's the property was bought by Sir Peter Henry Macelland
and since- 1947 the owner has been Mr. Percy Hennell, who has very much
improved the interior of the house by simpathetic and skilpyll. restoration
and replacement. The old brewery has also been much changed for the better.

This Georgian property has been up#listed to Grade II. It has
three floors including the attic one. On the ground floor are two doors,
the left-hand one probably added during the shop peribod. Each floor has three
good-sized transom windows and all those on the front facade and the large
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two-storey bay to the south are origibals. except perhaps the two ground-floor
ones flanking the later door. Below the attic is a carved cornice and there
are two sets of chimneys, one near each end of the facade. The front part. of
the house has a mansard roof, slated towards the front but with red tiles on
the rear side and also on the other sloping parts of the roof. The house has
sixteen rooms, the finest being the large drawing room with the great bow
window on the right of the other door. This room has been refitted in a
Georgian style and painted in sof't appropriate shades. Behind is the library,
now panelled in old oak and furnished with anold hinged door. The original
staircase has long been gone but the kitchen, on the north-east corner of the
house, retains its original veiling beams though the room now has modern
fitments and there are other conveniences nearby. Below are extensive cellars
with a considerable number of old beams. reinforced with new wood. In the
centre of the cellars is the most exciting feature of the house, a well forty
feet deep with a wide circular surround, and the water therein is surprisingly
clear. :

" The o0ld detached brewery has two floors and has been given a :
staircase in place of a ladder, : ncw floor cn the first flsor, large windows
and a new roof. . It is now in use as a workroom :and.offices and has a Queen
Anne exterior doorcase and door. g

: _ There is extensive stabling, or garaging, with old timbers in part
and there id a drive ? .- - o along the front of the house. To the rear is a
moderate-sized garden, well planned and not overlooked. Along the two road
boundaries is a thick hedge and the other sides of the garden are walled.

Chace House has a good period frontage and a mansard roof, a well
restored interior together with modern fitments, some original seiling
timbers, the rare feature of a well in the cellars, a useful detached brick
building in good repair, extensive covered garaging and a quiet not too
large garden. It is also an outstanding part of an older historic group
on the edge of the Chace and once a part of it. The = 11 is a very rare
surviver for Potters Bar and elsewhere so near London and Georgian houses:
are themselves very rare in the locality.

M. B. Honeybourne.

Additional Notes on Chace House

In a letter to Barnet and District Record Society (now the Barnet
and District Local History Society) written in Jamuary 1950, Mr. Hennell says
that the existing deeds do not go back beyond 1863 and enquiries he had made
to ascertain when the house was built had proved unsuccessfuls He had
managed to obtain a photostat copy of an Ordnance Survey of 1816 (the first
Ordnance Survey map of the area, Sheet 7 - 0ld Series, was not published until
1832 but Mr. Hennell would appear to have obtained a copy of the surveyor's
manuscript drawing from the British Museum) which shows the house with both
wings, but with neither the barn nor the brewery. A mep of 1801 did not show
the house. at all. .

He understood that the mansard roof was one of the earliest
examples of Mansrd's work in this country.

In the cellars the bearer beams and bonding timbers show evidence
of extensive damage by fire.

The marble fireplace in the dining room is of William and Mary
bolection moulding and was discovered under many layers of paint. The
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Victorian fire place in the outer hall came from the entrance hall of Nyn
Park. Behind a wooden fireplace Mr. Hennell had found freshly minted coins
of George III dated 1806 and 1807 together with two rather battered William
III halfpennies.

R

TRAVELLERS THROUGH KITTS END

The Holyhead Road through Kitts End was already well established
when, in the late seventeenth sentury, the Great North Road came into being
Thereafter - until the St. Albans Road was cut.in the eighteen-twenties - at
Hadley Highstoneé the two main roads diverged and Joseph Taylor in 4705
recorded that 'Near Bernet wetrode by a good seat belonging to the family
of Woolfe's, but very oddly scituated between two high wayes'. (4 Journey
to Edenborough; British Museum: 10370.dd.27)

This seat would appear to have been the predecessor of Wrotham

- Park, though no mention has been found in local recoréds of a man called
Woolfe. = Mrs. Baker has suggested, however, that he might have been a
tennant of the absentee Howkins who owned Pinchbeck or, possibly, the owner
of Knights in Green Dragon Lane.

The fork in the road at Hadley Highstone led at least one
travellor astray, but he was a special case because he was blind. The
remarkable thing is that he found his way about as well as he did; but then
he was a remarkable man - John Metcalf, the road-maker. Returning to
Harrogate in1741 from London, he was offered a seat in Colonel Liddell's
carriage but declined the 1lift, claiming that he could walk as far in a day
as the colonel could travel in his carriage drawn by post-horses - a
commentary on the state of the roads at the time! They arranged to meet
in Welwyn; and Metcalf set off along the Great North Road. But his
blindness led him astray: hugging, perhaps, the left hand side of the road,
at Hadley Highstone he walked on down Kitts End Road. How far he went out
of his way is not recorded; but in spite of his detour he reached Velwyn.
before the colonel. (Life of John Metcalf; British Museum: 10825.a.23).

Twenty years later - one November evening in 1761 - George Bowles
rode in a post-chaise from London and recorded in his diary that he 'arrived
at 8 at night at a small town in Middlesex called Kittstown distance from
London 13 miles; supped and lay there (bill 7-0). At six o'clock Thursday
morning set out from Kits Town....' (The Antiquary; xxxvi ). What he
called Kits Town was, of course, Kitts End; 'town'“*wes a term then applied
to villages and Kitts End was large enough to seem like a village. It
boasted eight inns at about this time; at which one of them Bowles stayed
his diary does not record, but the White Lyon was the largest and the most
likely with its stabling for 43 horses.

By 1790 Kitts End had become a halt, where horses could be
changed, for some of the stage coaches. Among them was the Manchester
coach, on which John Byng travelled on June 7th. of that year with three
female fellow-passengers. - He 'skulked in a corner & dndured an uncomfortable
ride' - grateful, no doubt, for the brief respite afforded by the stops noted
in his journal: 'Change horse at Kitts-End; at Redburn; and at dunstable,'
©fae Torrington Diaries).



After the new St. Albans Road 'virtually doomed the hamlet of
Kitts End to extimction' (The Stry of Potters Bar and South Mimms),
references to it in traveller's diaries and journals ceased; but brief as
they were even in its hey-day, they are not without interest.

M. Tomkins

RECENT BOOKS

"Gheshunt in Hertfordshire" by Jack Edwards. Published by Cheshunt Urban -
District Council. Price £2.

Mr. Jack Edwards, who has spoken to Potters Bar Historical Society
on the history of Cheshunt, has published the results of his many years of
research in "Cheshunt in Hertfordshire". If its division into three parts
- general history, social history, and a perambulstion - has resulted.in a
few repetitions, these are brief; and the book's 120-odd pages are. packed
with information presented precisely and without digression, Mr.. Edwards
has resisted the temptation to interrupt his theme by writing at length - as
doubtless he could have done - on, say, the New River or Isaac Watts. &
wish, however, there had been room for him to recount the story of the King
and Tinker tantalisingly mentioned.

Mr. Edwards does not overlook Cheshunt's more recent historm:
he brings the story right up to the end of 1973, though with a warning that
some of the old buildings je has described may already have been demolished
by the time the book is published. But what a surprising number that are
of interest he found in an area that many of us woukd have heen inclined to
dismiss as ‘almost entirely the non-descript product of the twentieth century.

The main sources are listed and show how widely Mr. Edwards has
spredd his.nét. One source not tapped is Dudley Stamp's %The Land of
Brittain", in whichappeared maps showing the distribution of arable land
in this part of Hertfordshire c.1766, 1840, and 1930; this would have been
rélevant to the chapter on land use. e

If any errors crept into the book, none was apparent to me - only
one slip of wording: "The importance of (Waltham Cross).... cannot be
under-estimated" ; clearly over-estimated is intended Y  The cross is the
subject of the frontispiece - a.most attractive composition of Rowlandson's
which was new to me. It is one of several illustrations, all interesting
and well produced. A fold-in map of Cheshunt parish in 1807 is useful
to refer to in order to locate places referred to in the text, though not
all of them are featured on it; a general map would have been of help to
readers unfamiliar with the locality. It is a tribute to Mr. Edwards,
however, that even to such readers (of whom I am one) his book is &
fascinating chronicle and an example of how to write a parish history that
is at once readable and accurate.
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"The Mound People - Danich Bronze Age Man Preserved" by P. V. Globb,
translated by Jane Bulman, Faber and Faber Ltd., London. ©Price £4.25.

In this work Professor Globh discusses meny of -the finds in the
Bronze Age burial mounds in Denmark.,  Most of these discoveries were made
accidentally, due very often to a farner remov1ng earth from a mound to marl
his land. In some of these burlﬁls there was a remarkable degrce of
preservation; skin,hair and occoasionally the brain being largely intact.
In others even the skeleton (or most of it) had disappeared leaving only
clothing and grave goods. Some of the finds are surprising to the modern
mind - mini-skirts and zip fasteners 3,000 years old %

The author presents his facts in a manner which will appeal both
to the general reader and to the serioud student. The work is liberally
illustrated with excellent photographs and sketches. In spite of index
letters on many of these sketches no explanation is given in either the
captions or the text. This is a pity as is the lack of reference to the
illustrations in the narrative. There is a map showing the location of
the sites discussed and an index., ' ' '

"The Local Historian's Encyclopaedia"” by John Richardson. Historical
Publishkions Ltde, New'Barnet; Price £1°50;

This hundy,llttle, po per—blcked encyclopaedia claims to be the
fi¥st publication to present,in easy reference form, the basic information
needed by those interested in local history. The work is divided into
sections, each of which covers a separate-field of interest. There is an
extensive bibliography and a comprehensive index.

R

NTt+'s a Don's lafe’, by'Dr. Frederick Brittain. Heinman and Co. Ltd.
Price £4.

Autobiography of the well known 'Mymmsian' and author. “erhaps
his best known work is "South Mymms", which until 1966 was the latest history
of the district.

Dr: Brittain wrote many other books, notably collections of lOCul
annecdotes (many of these are very amusing) . He was also a Unlver51tj
Lectyrer in mediaeval literature and o fellow 6f Jesus Gollege, Cambrldge;

"01d Series Ordnance Survey". Prepared and published by Harry Margary,
Lympe Castlée, Kent. - In 10 volumes, price £10 per volumes

Volume I.  Kent, Essex’ qnd Ea st Sussex°

The ten volumes, when completed will reproduce all of the 110
sheets of the old series Ordnance Survey. The maps will be printed on one
side of the paper only and each folded page of two panels will contain one
quarter of the original sheet. Each volume will contain an introduction:
by J. B. Hartley of the University of Exeter %nd Yolande Jones af the dap
Roon of the British Museum.



NOTES ON THE FORMER PUBLIC HOUSE KNOWN AS THE DUKES

HEAD AND OLDHOUSEFIELD (LATER KNOWN AS MOBBS HOLE FARM)

The public house called the Dukes Head only appears in the ‘list of
Victualers Licences for South Mimms between 1767 and 1800, It stood in the
lane we now call Trotters Bottom, on the north side, adjoining the Ridge
boundary, at the corner of a field once called Oldhousefield but later
changed to Oldenfield or Holdersfield. This field is one of some historic
interest as it appears to have been part of the land with which the Frowyke
Chantry at South Mimms Church was endowed.

At the reformation when the chantry estates were confiscated -the
lands belonging to Frowyke Chantry were. granted to Walter Cromer and are
described in the grant of 1547 as a chantry house and land in South limms in
the tenure of Thomas Andrews. A field called Oldhousefield containing 14
acres in the tenure of Henry Dell and lands called Gannocke containing 120
acres with a grove of wood of 1L acres which was in the tenure of John
Conningsby. The chantry house and land later known as Bhantry Mead was in
South Mimms village. The lands called Gannocke becape Bentley Heath Farm
and Oldhousefield by its history appears. to be part of this land which later
became ¥nown as Mobbs Hole Farm,

Wialter Cromer, to whom the chantry kand was granted, died within a
few months of receiving the grant in 1547. The property passed to his son
Thomas, a minor, and was held in the custody of his mother Alice and later
by her second husband Thomas Hewys until Thomas Cromer came of age. In 1561
Thomas Cromer was granted a licence to convey all the chantry lands to Thomas
Blackwell who in the same yeer sold Oldhousefield, now listed as containing
30 acres, to Nicholas and Thomas Parrett. ST 7 Seti

In 1595 John Parrett, son of Nicholas, died and by his-will left.
two parts of his land Oldhousefield alias Cldefield .and.two parts of-a house
or tenament lately erected on it to his wife for her life and a third part
to his eldest son Thomas Parrett, who also was to have the other two parts
when his mother died. John Parrett had also held a twelve year lease on
the land called Gannocke and on the parsonage of South limms.

In 1608 Thomas Parrett leased to Francis Young and his wife Joan
a cottage with an orchard and garden and one rood of land, which appears to
be the buidlding mentioned in his father's will - they are described as
abutting on Holdersfield (elsewhere given as an alias for Oldenfield) »a the
- on the north and east and on land called Palmers belonging to William Loekey
on the west, this would be in Ridge parish, and the common lane on the south.

Four years later the Youngs allowed Robert Deane to build another
cottage on a piece of their rood of land. In the next hundred years the two
buildings with their orchard and garden passed through many hands until in
1741 they were sold to William Rogers, described as before but now said to be
at a place called Mobbs Hole.

In 1765 William Rogers sold the two buildings to William Keppell
the owner of Durham Park and from him they passed with the rest of the Durhem
estate to Christopher Bethell in 1775.

In 1798 when John Trotter purchased the Durham Park estate the sale
included the cottage with its garden and orchard as originally leased by
Thomas Parrett in 1608 to Francis and Joan Young,and now used as & public
house in the occupation of John Short. John Short held a licence for the
Dukes Head from 1785 to 1800, before him John Dunn held the licence frou
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1780 to 1783, Henry Cooper fromi775 to 4776 and Joseph Marlbcrough in 1767,
in which year ha also appears in the lend tax return for South Mimms as a
tennant of William Keppell.

In the valuation of the Durham Park estate of 1805 a public house
and garden containing 1 rood 3 perches is included and valued at £6 if in good
repair. There are no further licences issued for the Dukes I'ced and no
other records nor does a building appear on any maps of South Mimms except
what appears to be a building at the corner of the boundary on John Roque s
1754 plan of Middlesex.

The remainder of Oldhousefield sometime before 1695 became the
property of the Pope Blounts of Tittenhanger when it is listed &s part of
a marriage settlement between Thomas Pope Blount and Katherine Butler as
Holders or Oldenfield. In 1786 it was sold by the heirs of the Pope Blounts
to Christopher Bethell and became merged with the Durham Park lands and
renamed Mobbs Hole Farm. The lane to the south, now Trotters Bottom was
then called Mobbs Hole Lane with Durham Lane as the old name for Blanche
Lane on the east. 2

> E T P .
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‘The junction of Mobbs Hole Laqe with Durham Lane would be the
Mobbs Hole Lane mentioned in the diversion of the old lane from Durham House

to this spot which is one of two dxvcr51ons to old highways made by ¥illiam
Keppell in 1736.

Helen ii. Baker 1974

REFERENCES .
% p.140
Frowyke Chantry Lands: Letters and Popers, Hy .VIII Vol.XXI pt.2 p140 Ldn.1910,
Cal® Patent Rolls, L4Eliz. part IX pp 369 & 372 and P.R.O C66/98L.,
Will of John Parrett: Guildhall Library M3 9171/18 - 1595.
Trotters Records: Herts. R.C. D/ETr/T16 - Dukes Head S.Mimms, 17 documents
s TR e (1608 to 1736) «
D/ETr/TL4 - Valuation of Durham Park,
D/ETr/T13 - Abstract title of 6 pieces of land
in South Mimnms.
Herts R. 0. Broockmans Collection 23785, 36460, 36469, Sales of Blount property.
fiddx. Deeds Register 1728 Bk. 3/24;/50, 1741 Bk. 3/91/93, 1765 Bk.3/27,
1786 Bk.2/296, 1787 Bk. 2/94/95, 1798 Bk. 3/559
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LOCAL NEWS"

S4LISBURY HOUSE

On the 8th. November notice was given that an application had
been made to Hertsmere District Council for planning permission for
"Restoration of Salisbury, High Street, Potters Bar, together with the
erection of offices" (after demolition of existing annexe building) .

Salisbury House is included in the list of Buildings of Historic
and Architectural Interest. It is over a year now since the then Potters
Bar Urban District Council sold the house to the Scottish Mutual assurance
Society and people were begining to wonder what was going to be done with
it. In the meantime vandals have been busy, windows have been broken and
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the whole place was begining to aquire a rather woebegone air. It almost
looked as though the new owners were going to neglect their new auisition

as shamefully as their predecessors had done. If Scotish Mutual carry out
their restoration and modifications in the manner in:whioh they hawve promised
then the people of Fotters Bar will have cause to be grateful to themfor
preserving a building which is almost unique in the area.

"WYLLYOTTS MANNOR

Restoration work at Wyllyotts Manor was completed early in
December and the restaurant and bar opened to the public. The work has
been carefully and tastefully carried out and is a credit to Messrs. Goodhews
Ltd., their architects and contractors., Now, at last, the oldest building
"in Potters Bar is open to the public.

MISS M. B, HONEYBOURNE

It is with regret that we have to tecord the death of Miss M. B.
Honeybourne, M.i., F.S.A., who died on VWednesday 13th. November.

Miss Honeybourne, who had been a teacher in local schools, was well
known in local history circles. She spoke to this Society some years ago
and had taught in W.E.d. classesin Potters Bar. She was Chairman and a
Vice-President of the Barnet and District Local Histopy Society, a member
of a number of other historical and archaeological societies and was one
of the first women to become a Fellow of the Society of Antiquaries.

an article she wrote on Chace House appears on page 3 of this
issue.

%
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PB&DHS NEWS

PUBLICATIONS |

The Historical Society has plans for the productiion of booklets,
pamphlets etc. on matters of local historical interest. The first of these,
a record of the graves in the former St. John%s churchyard, and compiled by
Mrs. Betty Fost will appear soon.

PHOTOGRAPHS, PICTURE POSTC.RDS ETC.

We appeal to any readers wHo may have old photographs, picture
postcards or documents relating to the district to lend them to the Society
for copying. 4 letter or telephone call to the secretary or any member of
the committee will ensure that they will be collected. They will be returned
to you as promptly as possible and undemaged.

Your co-operation in this respect will help to ensure that the
records of our more recent history are as complete as possible. It is certain
that many people have in their possession photographs of buildings, street and
country scenes and of people which they consider to have no value other than
one that is personal and sentimental. Nothing could be further from the truth;
such pictures would be -of immense interest both to present and future generstions.
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NEW MEMBERS

/e are pleased to welcome the following new members to the Historical Society
and hope to see them at most or, better still, all of our: mestings. %We hope
that they will receive both pleasure and instruction from our lectures and that
they will make known to the committee any ideas they may have for future talks
and activities.

Mr. M. Sommers, Mr. P. Wilson, Major D. N. Van der Groot, Mrs. Flynn, Mr. R. C.
Jones, Miss N. E. Gower, Lady Elizabeth Byng, Mrs. M. Long, Mrs. E. R. Evans,
Mr. and lirs. N. W. Mackinley, Mr. I. T. Dempster, Mrs. . P. Jackson.

FUTURE FPROGR.MME

Tuesday, 4th. February - "English Parish Churches" - T. L. Lilley, #.ReIoBeoiie
Thursday, 27th. February - "Trade Tokens of the 17th. Century" - G. Berry

Thursday, 13th., March - ".irchaeology and the Ordnance Survey" (with particular
. reference tc the history of the Ordnance Survey) .

Friday 18th. 4pril - annual General lieeting.
- "Local History" - Mrs., H. M. Baker,

BARNET AND DISTRICT LOC.aL HISTORY SOCIETY

Feeling that our readers may find something of interest in the
activities of our friends in Barnet we give below a list of their future
programme.

Wednesday 12th. February - "Trade Tokens" - G. Berry (if you cant get to ouss,
come to this one).

Wednesday 12th. March - "Mural Decorations in Secular Buildings"' - l.E.Keevil.
Wednesday 15th. October - "History of Epping Forest" - Bernard T. Ward

Wednesday 12th. November - "Church Bell Founding" - i.bi.Hughes.

4N APOLOGY

We apologise for the unorthodox numbering of the pages of this issue. This
has- been caused by a change in plan for the production of the front cover
(normally page 1) after the editing and pasting-up HiD been done and after
the cover itself had been typed.

We also apologise for any typing errors that may have occurred and hope that
these are not too serious.




